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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The District of Columbia Court of Appeals is a free-standing building at the 
southeast corner of 5th and E Streets, N. W. It is built of regular limeston 
ashlar, measures approximately 102' (five-bay front) by 128 f (nine-bay flank) 
is three stories high, and has a copper-sheathed low hip roof. The three 
central bays of the front and rear and the five central bays of the sides 
project slightly to form pavilion motifs. The principal feature of the ex­ 
terior is the tetrastyle Greek Ionic pedimented portico above a segmental- 
arched podium that shelters the three center bays of the front. The rear 
elevation is rather similarly composed, except that there is no portico, 
only a pilaster order. The fenestration of the ground floor is segmental- 
arched, and that floor is treated as a basement or podium for the tall main 
floor above it. The central pavilion windows of the main floor are round- 
arched, those of the end bays, with one exception, being rectangular. The 
exception is the large round-arched window at the north end of the east wall. 
That window lights the main staircase and does not correspond with the two 
rectangular windows at the south end of the same wall. Thus, the east wall 
is not identical with the similar west wall, nor is it strictly symmetrical. 
The third floor is fenestrated only in the central bays of the east and west 
sides. Rectangular panels and deep entablatures mask the third floor on the 
front and rear elevations and the end bays of the sides. The exterior is 
unaltered and was designed in a transitional late-Federal - Early Greek Revrv 
style to accord in its details with Hadfield's Washington City Hall (now 
United States District Courthouse) of 1820 and following, that stands on the 
same Judiciary Square block. In 1939, a similar but not quite identical 
building by Nathan C. Wyeth to house the Superior Court of the District of 
Columbia was built as a pendant at the corner of 4th and D Streets. Thus 
all three buildings are similar in architectural treatment. The Greek Re­ 
vival details of the Court of Appeals include not only the order and attic 
panels, etc, but also the palmette design of the wrought iron railing of the 
front portico.

The interior detailing is consistent with the exterior. The first floor con­ 
tains a large entrance hall with main stairway at the left. A single run 
rises to a broad landing spanning the east wall. Two runs rise from the land' 
ing to the second floor. An annular corridor encloses a central core of inter­ 
ior rooms divided by a cross corridor providing a passage between the center­ 
ed side entrances. A short passage between two offices leads to the rear en­ 
trance, and the two long side corridors from front hall to rear lead to two 
minor rear staircases. The floor is white and grey marble. Three offices or 
the first floor have fireplaces with mantels of late Federal character. Doors 
are mahogany. The central core on the second floor contains the court room, 
which measures about 41' by 66' and rises to the roof. It is skylit. The 
front lobby at the second level is formally treated with Greek Ionic pilastei 
and a distyle in antics access to the main staircase. The ceiling is flat aid 
has Greek revival plaster details. Two large bronze chandeliers and a diagoi.- 
ally set black and white marble floor enhance the dignity of the hall. The 
courtroom walls are articulated by paired Greek Corinthian pilasters support 
ing a modillion cornice. A cove effects the transition from wall plane to the 
large rectangular skylight. The paired mohogany doors are headed by triangu 
lar pediments, the seating is furnished by mohogany pews, and the mahogany
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7. DESCRIPTION

bench is backed by a draped gilded reredos. At the rear, behind the court­ 
room is a conference room between the two minor staircases. The conference 
room has a groined ceiling. There is a fireplace at each end. Judges' cham­ 
bers have fireplaces and full bathrooms with the original marble fittings.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The District of Columbia Court of Appeals (now United States Court of 
Military Appeals) is a particularly fine and remarkably early example of 
revived (20th century) Greek Revival architecture, Elliott Woods (1865- 
1923), who was Architect of the Capitol from 1902 until his death, designed 
the Court of Appeals with great sensitivity to respect the adjacent former 
Washington City Hall of 1820, which now serves as the District of Columbia 
Courthouse. In addition to being sympathetic to the Hadfield-Mills Old City 
Hall (Mills is credited with the south side plan and George Hadfield with the 
north side plan) , the design of the Court of Appeals was greatly influenced 
by it.

The Court of Appeals building is exceptionally well executed. The materials 
are fine without being lavish, and the refined restraint displayed through­ 
out the structure exemplifies the best architectural thought of the conser­ 
vative school during the first decade of this century. This singularly har­ 
monious building is extravagant by modern standards in its use of space, 
fully a third of which is devoted to stairs, passages , and stately lobbies. 
The dignity of the law and the esteem in which it should properly be held are 
well expressed by the setting provided by this building. There is in Woods' 
building no false note of pomposity or meretricious display. A judicious 
restraint and fine sense of balance mark this judicial structure, one of the 
handsomest of its period among Government buildings.

The district of Columbia Court of Appeals was established in 1893. The 
building under discussion was authorized by an Act of May 30, 1908 and was 
completed on October 1, 1910. It housed the D. C. Appellant Court until 
1952, when, on November 1, it was turned over to the United States Court of 
Military Appeals.
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